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Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C. Consultants and Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

October 9,2014

To the Board of County Commissioners
Hinsdale County, Colorado

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Hinsdale County, Colorado as of and
for the year ended December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our andit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Hinsdale County, Colorado, as of December 31, 2013, and the respective changes
in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

225 North 5th Street , Suite 401 www.c‘st‘.iépa.com 970/245-3000
Grand Junction, CO 81501-2645 e-mail info@csdcpa.com Fax 970/242-4716
TouL FRee 877/245-8080
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Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note K to the financial statements, the previously issued financial statements have been restated
for the correction of a material misstatement in the fund and government-wide financial statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012. The material misstatement was corrected in the current year through a prior period
adjustment to beginning fund balance in the Sheriff and General funds and beginning net position in the
government-wide statements.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4-9 and 34-36 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements,
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise Hinsdale County, Colorado’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as
required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, dudits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are
the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including
comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our
opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The Local Highway Finance Report has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statement and accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 9, 2014, on our
consideration of Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal contro! over financial reporting and
compliance.
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HINSDALE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

This management’s discussion and analysis of Hinsdale County financial statements provides an
overview of the County’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013. The intent of
this discussion and analysis is to look the County’s financial performance as a whole; it should be read in
conjunction with the basic financial statements and notes to enhance the reader’s understanding of the
County’s overall financial performance.

USING THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This annual report consists of four parts—management’s discussion and analysis (this section), the basic
financial statements, the supplementary information, and the single audit. The basic financial
statements include two types of information on the same statement that present different views of the
County:

e Government-wide financial statements report information on all of the activities of County and
its component units, except for County fiduciary activity.

* Fund financial statements of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues, and
expenditures or expenses.

Government-wide Statements

The government-wide statements include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities.
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental activities,
which are normally supported by taxes, charges for services and intergovernmental revenues, are
reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on user charges for
support.

These two statements report the County’s net position and changes in it. The County’s net position—
the difference of assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows—are one way to measure the County’s financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net position are one
indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. Other non-financial factors,
however, such as changes in the County’s property tax base and the condition of the infrastructure, are
needed to assess the overall health of the County.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s funds, focusing on

its most significant funds——not the County as a whole. The County’s major governmental funds include
the General Fund, the Road and Bridge Fund, and the Sheriff Fund.



HINSDALE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Governmental funds — The County’s activities are reported in three governmental funds, which focus on
how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for
spending in future periods. The funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual
accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash.

The Proprietary Fund is accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting as follows:
e Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when the liabilities are
incurred.
s Current-year contributions, administrative expenses, and premium payments, which are not
received or paid until the subsequent year, are accrued.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements consist of the Trust and Agency Funds and are custodial in nature
(assets equal liabilities) and do not involve measurement or results of operations.

THE COUNTY AS A WHOLE
Statement of Net Position

The perspective of the Statement of Net Position is of the County as a whole. Following is a summary of
the County’s net position for the fiscal years 2012 and 2013.

2012 2013
Governmental Business-type Total Governmental Business- Total
Activities Activities Activities type ota
Activities
Current and Other assets 3,602,769 17,562 3,620,331 3,914,753 24,022 | 3,938,775
Capital Assets 2,358,653 104,579 2,463,232 2,122,509 91,478 | 2,213,987
Total Assets 5,961,422 122,141 6,083,563 6,037,262 115500 | 6,152,762
Long-Term Liabilites 33,789 0 33,789 44,564 0 44,564
outstanding
Other Liabilities 290,104 0 290,104 348,668 1,925 348,793
Deferred 'T;i:”:z Property 1,088,352 0 1,088,352 1,043,885 0 1,043,885
Total Liabilities 1,412,245 0 1,412,245 1,437,117 1,925 | 1,437,242
Net Position:
Net '”Veszgfe’lts in Capital 2,339,775 104,579 2,444,354 2,122,509 91,478 | 2,213,987
Restricted for TABOR 96,500 0 96,500 113,174 0 113,174
Unrestricted 2,112,902 17,562 2,130,464 2,364,462 22,097 | 2,386,559
Total Net Position 4,549,177 122,141 4,671,318 4,600,145 113,575 | 4,713,720

The County shows a positive balance in net position. The most significant items on the statement of net
position are an increase in Total Assets with an increase in Current Assets and a decrease in Capital
Assets. Capital Assets are described in more depth in NOTE E.




HINSDALE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Statement of Activities

The perspective of the Statement of Activities is of the County as a whole. The Statement of Activities
reflects the cost of program services and the charges for services and sales, grants and contributions
offsetting those services. The following detail reflects the total cost of services supported by program
revenues, sales taxes, and general property taxes, as well as other general revenues, resulting in the
overall change in net position for the fiscal years 2012 and 2013.

2012 2013
. Governmental | Business-type Governmental Business-type
REVENUES: Activities Activities Total Activities Activities Total
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services 553,812 139,348 693,160 452,233 135,075 587,308
Grants 1,343,639 0 1,343,639 1,450,793 0 1,450,793
Contributions
General Revenues:
Taxes 2,334,176 0 2,334,176 2,331,954 0 2,331,954
Interest  Other 33,163 10,425 43,588 24,763 0 24,763
Ravenue
Total Revenues 4,264,790 149,773 4,414,563 4,259,743 135,075 4,394,818
EXPENSES:
General 1,691,623 0 1,691,623 2,179,872 0 2,179,872
Government
Public Safety 467,140 0 467,140 452,123 0 452,123
Health Welfare 415,559 0 415,559 366,324 0 366,324
Highways Streets | 1,235,997 0 1,235,997 1,187,018 0 1,187,018
Culture 91,206 0 91,206 81,810 0 81,810
Recreation
Transfer 0 120,732 120,732 0 143,641 143.641
Station/Recreation
interest Expense 12,291 0 12,291 3,216 0 3,216
Total Expenses 3,913,816 120,732 4,034,548 4,270,363 143,641 4,414,004
|
ncrease (Decrease) 350,974 29,041 380,015 (10,620) (8,566) (19,186)
in net position:
Net Pasition 4,149,986 93,100 4,243,086 4,549,177 122,141 4,671,318
January 1
Prior Period Ad] 48,217 0 48,217 61,588 0 61,588
Net Position 4,198,203 93,100 4,291,303 4,610,765 122,141 4,732,906
January 1 restated
Net Position 4,549,177 122,141 4,671,318 4,600,145 113,575 4,713,720
December 31

The County’s primary sources of revenue are from taxes and grants. These revenues are used to pay the
cost of the general government and capital asset improvements.

The County operated at increases in net position for governmental activities in 2012 and 2013 due to, in
part, a prior period adjustment. Without the prior period adjustment the total change in Net Position
would have decreased. Road and Bridge is raising rates charged for work for other governments in 2014.

The County operated at an increase in net position for business-type activities in 2012 due to in part to a
prior period adjustment from the Conservation Trust Fund to the Recreation Fund and increased




HINSDALE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

revenues in the recreation fund. The Recreation fund is expected to have decreased revenues in 2013
due to fire activity in the early part of the tourist season. The Transfer Station is raising rates in 2014.
There was a decrease in 2013 as anticipated, due to decreased revenues in the recreation fund, due to
fire activity in the early part of the tourist season. The Transfer Station is raising rates in 2014 to allow
for a change in the calculation of fees at the Landfill in Gunnison.

The County’s Major Funds

The County’s procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial statements are
summarized in Note B of the financial statements. No amended budgets were adopted by the County
during the fiscal year 2013.

The County generated a 30% increase in fund balances in the total major and non-major governmental
funds and proprietary funds during 2013. The total fund balances for these funds increased by $575,724
over the budgeted expectation. This was due mainly to General Fund revenues being higher than
expected, mainly Sales Tax, and Severance Tax; the Road and Bridge Fund earning more RAC Revenue
and expenses being lower in Title [l which allocated the balance to be spent in 2014. It is to be noted
that when we budget, the Fund Balance amounts do not include inventory and Assets as part of the
Fund Balance.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund Resources (Inflows)

The County’s final revenues in the amount of $2,056,891 were more than budget expectations of
$1,690,679 by $366,212 due in most part to Sales Tax being 114,577 more than budget, Severance Tax
of 54,223 not being budgeted, and various fees being more than budgeted.

General Fund Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)

The County’s final expenditures of $1,818,787 were more than the final appropriated balance of
$1,745,539 by $73,248 mostly due to increased Revenue. The most material example of the increased
Revenue was the receipt of a CWCB Emergency Fund Grant for $2,500,000 unknown at the time of the
budget. $427,252 was spent and receivable at the end of 2013. This included a 5% Administration Fee of
$21,363.

Road & Bridge Fund Highlights

Road & Bridge Fund Resources (Inflows)

The County’s final revenues in the amount of $1,236,479 were more than budget expectations of
$1,147,864 by 588,615 due mostly to earned RAC funds for Forest Service work.

Road & Bridge Fund Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)

The County’s final expenditures of $1,185,384 were slightly more than budget expectation of $1,194,487

by $9,624 and can be considered to meet budgeted amounts.

Sheriff Fund Highlights



HINSDALE COUNTY
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
DECEMBER 31, 2013

Sheriff Fund Resources (Inflows)
The County’s final revenues in the amount of $505,170 were more than the budget expectations of
$443,191 by $61,979 due to unbudgeted grants and higher than budgeted fees.

Sheriff Fund Charges to Appropriations {Outflows)
The County’s final expenditures of $528,426 were less than the budget expectations of $562,620 by
$34,194 due to the policy of budgeting expenses high.

Public Health Highlights

Public Health Fund Resources (Inflows)

The County’s final revenues in the amount of $175,107 were more than the budget expectations of
$168,598 by $6,509 due to new contracts and grants unknown at the time of budget. New in 2013 was a
contract with Hilltop Health Care for services.

Public Health Fund Charges to Appropriations (Outflows)

The County’s final expenditures of $198,882 were less than the budget expectations of $212,945 by
$14,063 due to the Administration and the Summer Youth Program coming in under budget. In the plans
for 2014 is the formation of a new combined Health Service District which will add Revenue from
another county.

Emergency Services Highlights

Emergency Services Fund Resources (Inflows)
The County’s final revenues in the amount of $108,539 were more than the budget expectations of
$119,118 by $9,546 due to increased EMS donations.

Emergency Services Fund Charges to Appropriations (Qutflows)

The County’s final expenditures of $132,104 were more than the budget expectations of $123,247 by
58,857 due to training, equipment replacement, and travel. In 2014 the addition of a part-time
Emergency Management Coordinator position will be added.

CAPITAL ASSETS

At the end of 2013, the County had a total $2,122,509 invested in capital assets of governmental
activities. The amount of capital assets for business-type activities totalled $91,478 after accumulated
depreciation. See Note E Capital Assets.

LONG-TERM DEBT

In December 2009, the County entered into a lease purchase agreement with Tyler Technologies for the
purchase of a new computer system. The terms of the lease call for five {5) annual payments of
$11,256.40 beginning January 15, 2010. The total cost of the system was $45,026.60. The final payment
was to be made lanuary 2014, however the balance was paid in August of 2013 in the amount of
$8,964.66, saving $2,561.74 of interest.
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CONTACTING THE COUNTY'’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our residents, customers, taxpayers, investors, and creditors
with a general overview of the County’s finances and to show the County’s accountability for the money
it receives. If you have any questions regarding this report or need additional financial information,
please contact:

HINSDALE COUNTY

Attn: Paula Davis, County Administrator
PO Box 277

Lake City CO 81235

PH: 970-944-2225

FAX: 970-644-2630

e-mail: hcadministrator@centurytel.net



Hinsdale County, Colorado
Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2013

Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventories
Total current assets
Noncurrent Assets
Capital assets:
Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Less acumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deposits payable
Unearned grant revenue
Compensated absences
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences
Total noncurrent liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deferred inflows
Property taxes

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for :
TABOR
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental Busines-Type
Activities Activities Total

3 2,303,815 $ 19,102 2,322917
292,800 - 292,800
1,043,885 1,539 1,045,424
102,084 3,381 105,465
172,169 - 172,169
3,914,753 24,022 3,938,775
857,400 6,327 863,727
1,955,124 - 1,955,124
2,303,470 261,280 2,564,750
692,175 - 692,175
(3,685,660) (176,129) (3,861,789)
2,122,509 91,478 2,213,987
6,037,262 115,500 6,152,762
189,311 125 189,436

3,103 - 3,103

1,800 1,800

125,712 - 125,712
44,564 - 44,564

362,690 1,925 364,615

30,542 - 30,542

30,542 - 30,542

393,232 1,925 395,157
1,043,885 - 1,043,885
2,122,509 91,478 2,213,987
113,174 - 113,174
2,364,462 22,097 2,386,559

3 4,600,145 $ 113,575 4,713,720

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

December 31, 2013

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Due from other funds
Inventory

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned grant revenue
Due to other funds
Total liabilites

Deferred inflows
Property taxes

Fund balance
Non-spendable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted
TABOR emergency reserve
Human services
Marketing and advertising
Open space
Retirement
Snow grooming
Emergency medical services
Public health
Public safety
Public works
Schools and road
Assigned
Capital purchases
Unassigned
Total fund balance

Road Other Total
General and Bridge Sheriff Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
1,316,102 349,533 169,979 $ 468,201 2,303,815
242,126 8,808 23,594 18,272 292,800
977,074 19,831 - 46,980 1,043,885
28,163 51,019 14,335 8,567 102,084
40,630 - - - 40,630
- 156,144 - 16,025 172,169
2,604,095 585,335 207,908 558,045 3,955,383
131,884 6,226 9,549 41,652 189,311
2,810 293 - - 3,103
- - - 125,712 125,712
40,630 - - - 40,630
175,324 6,519 9,549 167,364 358,756
977,074 19,831 - 46,980 1,043,885
- 156,144 - 16,025 172,169
28,163 51,019 14,335 8,567 102,084
113,174 - - - 113,174
- - - 28,472 28,472
- - - 11,486 11,486
- - - 6,548 6,548
- - - 60,307 60,307
- - - 15,235 15,235
- - - 25,804 25804
- - - 113,490 113,490
- - 184,024 - 184,024
- 351,822 - - 351,822
- - - 50 90
- - - 57,677 57,677
1,310,360 - - - 1,310,360
1,451,697 558,985 198,359 $ 343,701 2,552,742

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Hinsdale County, Colorado

Reconciliation of Governmental Fund Balance to
The Statement of Net Position

December 31, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities on the statement of net position are
different because:

Total fund balance - governmental funds
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and
therefore, are not reported in the funds
Cost
Accumulated depreciation
Long-term liabilities including leases payable and compensated absences are not due
and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Compensated absences

Total government wide actvities net position

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2,552,742
5,308,169
(3,685,660) 2,122,509
(75,106) (75,106)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance
Governmental Funds

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Road Other Total
General and Bridge Sheriff Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 983,399 $ 22,204 $ 365,687 $ 137,151 $ 1,508,441
Intergovernmental revenue 897,168 1,048,830 96,078 216,714 2,258,790
Licenses and permits 15,350 - - - 15,350
Interest on investments 9,539 - - - 9,539
Charges for services 133,670 140,027 6,336 68,712 348,745
Reimbursement 1,002 25,418 27,118 - 53,538
Miscellaneous 16,763 - 9,951 26,621 53,335
Total Revenues 2,056,891 1,236,479 505,170 449,198 4,247,738
Expenditures
Current expenditures
General government 1,796,693 - - 51,276 1,847,969
Public safety - - 452,123 - 452,123
Health and welfare - - - 366,324 366,324
Highways and streets - 1,104,700 - - 1,104,700
Culture and recreation - - - 81,810 81,810
Capital outlay - 89,787 76,303 - 166,090
Debt service
Principal 18,878 - - - 18,878
Interest 3,216 - - - 3,216
Total Expenditures 1,818,787 1,194,487 528,426 499,410 4,041,110
Excess (deficiency) of revenue
over expenditures 238,104 41,992 (23,256) (50,212) 206,628
Other financing sources (uses)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets - - 12,000 - 12,000
Transfer in 17,750 10,225 9,980 68,000 105,955
Transfer out (58,000) - - (47,955) (105,955)
Total other financing sources (uses) (40,250) 10,225 21,980 20,045 12,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) 197,854 52,217 (1,276) (30,167) 218,628
Fund balance at beginning of year 1,204,407 506,768 187,483 373,868 2,272,526
Prior period adjustment 49,436 - 12,152 - 61,588
Beginning fund balance, restated 1,253,843 506,768 199,635 373,868 2,334,114
Fund balance at end of year $ 1,451,697 $ 558,985 $ 198,359 $ 343,701 $ 2,552,742

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
And Changes in Fund Balances of the Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Activities

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities
are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 5 218,628

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation
expense.
Capital outlays 83,778
Depreciation expense (319,922) (236,144)

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
government funds, however, this transaction has no effect on net assets. Also, governmental
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount
is the net effectof these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

Decrease in compensated absences (11,982)
Debt principal payments 18,878 6,896
Change in net position of governmental activities §  (10,620)

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Statement of Net Position
Proprietary Funds

December 31, 2013

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Land
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation
Total Assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Deposits payable

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Transfer Station Recreation
Fund Fund Total
A 11,194 b 7,908 3 19,102
1,539 - 1,539
3,018 363 3,381
291 6,036 6,327
210,913 50,367 261,280
(149,855) (26,274) (176,129)
77,100 38,400 115,500
- 125 125
1,800 - 1,800
1,800 125 1,925
75,300 38,275 113,575
i) 75,300 3 38,275 3 113,575

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Transfer Recreation Total
Station Fund Fund Current Year
Operating revenues
Disposal fees b 112,253 $ - $ 112,253
Campground fees - 22,822 22,822
Total operating revenues 112,253 22,822 135,075
Operating expenses
Payroll expenses 26,727 71 26,798
Insurance 1,015 119 1,134
Sanitation and maintenance expenses 72,756 22,944 95,700
Supplies 1,873 3,437 5,310
Depreciation 10,692 2,409 13,101
Miscellaneous 1,598 - 1,598
Total operating expenses 114,661 28,980 143,641
Increase (decrease) in net position (2,408) (6,158) (8,566)
Net position at beginning of year 77,708 44,433 122,141
Net position at end of year A 75,300 $ 38,275 $ 113,575

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Statement of Cash Flow

Proprietary Funds

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers $

Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services
Cash payments to employees for services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Cash paid to other funds

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash
Provided (used) by operating activities:

Income (loss) from operations 3

Adjustments to reconcile income (loss) from operations
to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities b

Transfer
Station Recreation
Fund Fund Total
112,253 $ 22822 $ 135,075
(77,087) (26,351) (103,438)
(24,060) - (24,060)
11,106 (3,529) 7,577
(2,400) (11,833) (14,233)
(2,400) (11,833) (14,233)
8,706 (15,362) (6,656)
2,488 23,270 25,758
11,194 $ 7,908 $ 19,102
(2,408) $ (6,158) $ (8,566)
10,692 2,409 13,101
1,022 95 1,117
1,800 125 1,925
11,106 b (3,529) $ 7,577

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds

December 31, 2013

Treasurer's
Agency Fund
Cash and cash equivalents $ 192,043
Due to other governments $ 192,043
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting and reporting policies of the County reflected in the accompanying financial statements
conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America applicable to state
and local governments. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for local
governments are those promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Stands Board (GASB) in
Government Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards.

1.

Reporting Entity

Primary Government

The County is a political subdivision organized under the statutes of the State of Colorado. The
County is governed by a three-member elected Board of County Commissioners (the Board). There
are also five other elected officials — assessor, clerk and recorder, sheriff, district attorney, and
treasurer. The treasurer is also the County Public Trustee. The County provides a wide range of
services to its residents including public safety, highways and streets, parks and open spaces, health
and social services, public improvements, planning, zoning, and general administration.

Hinsdale County has no component units.

2. Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements include the statement of net position and the statement of
activities. Government-wide statements report information on all of the activities of the County and
its component units, except for County fiduciary activity. The effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes,
charges for services and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type
activities, which rely to a significant extent on user charges for support.

The statement of activities reflects the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function are
offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific
function. Program revenues include:

¢ Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and

¢ Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements

of a particular function or segments. Taxes and other items not properly included in program
revenues are reported as general revenues.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED

3. Fund Financial Statements

The accounts of the County are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate
accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, deferred inflows, fund equity, revenues,
and expenditures, or expenses, as appropriate. Government resources are allocated to, and accounted
for, in individual funds based upon the purposes for which they are to be spent and the means by which
spending activities are controlled.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a flow of current financial resources basis. Balance sheets
for these funds generally include only current assets, current liabilities, and appropriate deferred
inflows. Reported fund balances are considered a measure of available, spendable resources. Operating
statements for these funds present a summary of available, spendable resources and expenditures for the
period.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in
the fund financial statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

e The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It accounts for all financial resources
of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

e The Road and Bridge Fund is used to account for the maintenance and improvements of streets and
highways. The sources of funds include property taxes, highway user fees, and other revenue sources.

o The Sheriff Fund is used to account for the provision of law enforcement for the County.
The Proprietary Funds are accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting as follows:

e Revenues are recognized when earned, and expenses are recognized when the liabilities are
incurred.

e Current-year contributions, administrative expenses, and premium payments, which are not
received or paid until the subsequent year, are accrued.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements consist of the Trust and Agency Fund established to record
transactions relating to assets held by the County in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals,
governmental entities, and non-public organizations. Agency funds are custodial in nature (assets equal
liabilities) and do not involve measurement or results of operations.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31. 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED

4. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the enterprise fund financial statements. Revenues are
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied.
Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by
the provider have been met.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is used by all governmental funds. Under the modified accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., when they become both
measurable and available). “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined.
“Available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.
Exceptions to this general rule include: (1) principal and interest on general long-term debt, which is
recognized when due and (2) compensated absences, which are recognized when the obligations are
expected to be liquidated with expendable available resources.

Those revenues susceptible to accrual are interest revenue and charges for services. Entitlement
revenues are not susceptible to accrual because, generally, they are not measurable until received. Grant

revenues are recognized as they are earned.

5. Assets, Liabilities. and Net Position or Equity

Cash

The County’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market values, with the exception of money market
funds and external investments pools, which are stated at cost, which is equal to fair value.



Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED

5. Assets, Liabilities. and Net Assets or Equity - Continued

Property Taxes

Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1 each year. The taxes are payable
in two installments on February 28 and June 15 or in full on April 30. The County Treasurer bills and
collects all property taxes for the County. Property tax revenue is recognized by the County to the extent
it results in a current receivable.

The 2013 property tax levy due January 1, 2014 has been recorded in the financial statements as
receivable and corresponding deferred inflow in the financial statements.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on the expected collectability of current receivable based
on actual historical experience.

Interfund receivables and payables

Balances that originate from current lending/ borrowing arrangements between funds are referred to as
“Due To/ From Other Funds.”

Inventories and Prepaid Items

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory in the Special Revenue
Funds consists of expendable supplies held for use. Reported inventories are reported as non-spendable
fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute “available spendable resources” even though
they are a component of net current assets. Inventory policy on government-wide statements is consistent
with fund statements. Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land, buildings and improvements, equipment, construction in progress, and
infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental activities columns in the Government-wide Financial Statements. The County defines
capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and a life of more than one
year. Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated value at the date of donation. The costs of normal
maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not
capitalized.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED

5. Assets, Liabilities. and Net Assets or Equity- Continued

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Building 40
Furniture & Fixtures 7
General Equipment 10
Vehicles 3-5

GASB Statement No. 34 requires the County to report and depreciate new infrastructure assets.
Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related utilities), traffic signals,
etc. Neither their historical cost nor related depreciation has historically been reported in the financial
statements. There have been no additions to infrastructure assets since the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 34.

Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are recorded as liabilities in the Government-wide
Financial Statements. In the fund financial statements for governmental fund types, debt proceeds are
reported as another financing source.

Compensated Absences

County policy allows employees to accumulate unused vacation and sick leave up to certain maximum
hours. Retiring employees are paid 100% of unused vacation up to 240 hours, but are not paid for unused
sick leave. The County has recorded the accrued liability for the accumulated vacation time as
compensated absences in the accompanying financial statements.

Unearned Revenue

Revenues on grants, which are restricted by the grant document for specific purposes, are recognized as

revenue only after eligible grant costs have been incurred. Grant funds received in excess of grant
expenditures are recorded as unearned revenues.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31. 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED

5. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity- Continued

Fund Equity

Beginning with fiscal year 2011 the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 54, “Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.” This statement provides more clearly defined
fund balance categories to make the nature and extent of the constraints placed on a government’s fund
balance more transparent. In the fund financial statements the following classifications describe the
relative strength of the spending constraint.

Non-spendable fund balance — The portion of fund balance that cannot be spent because it is either not
in spendable form (such as prepaid expense and inventory), or is legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted fund balance — The portion of fund balance constrained to being used for a specific purpose
by external parties (such as grantors or bondholders), constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed fund balance — The portion of fund balance constrained for specific purposes according to
resolution passed by the County’s highest level of decision making authority, the Board of County
Commissioners, prior to the end of the current fiscal year. The constraint may be removed or changed
only through resolution by the Board of County Commissioners. Commitments are created through
adoption and subsequent amendment of the budget.

Assigned fund balance — The portion of fund balance set aside for planned or intended purposes. The
intended use may be expressed by the Board of County Commissioners or other individuals authorized
to assign funds to be used for a specific purpose.

Unassigned fund balance — The residual portion of fund balance that does not meet any of the above
criteria. The County will only report a positive unassigned fund balance in the General Fund.

If both restricted and unrestricted amounts of fund balance are available for use when an expenditure is
incurred, it is County policy to use restricted amounts first. Unrestricted fund balance will be used in
the following order; committed, assigned and unassigned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts
and disclosures. Actual results could different from those estimates.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,2013

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY
Budgets and Budgetary Accounting

Hinsdale County follows the procedures set for the in the Colorado Local Government Budget Law when
preparing the annual budget for each fund. Budget procedures include:

e Preparation of budget documents by administrative staff, which shall be submitted to the Board
no later then October 15 of each year.

¢ Publication of a notice stating that the budget is available for public inspection.
¢ Discussion of the budget in a meeting open to the public.
o Adoption of the budget in a public meeting by appropriate resolution, no later than December 31.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device for all funds of the County.
All budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP).

The total expenditures for each fund cannot exceed the budgeted amount unless a supplemental
appropriation is adopted.

All budget amounts presented in the accompanying supplementary information reflect the original and
final budget amounts.

The county exceeded budgetary appropriations in the General fund $122,498, Recreation fund $6,626,
Transfer Station fund $15,620, EMS fund $9,357, Retirement fund $1,243, Conservation Trust fund
$17,830, the Road and Bridge fund $9,624 and the Lodging Tax fund in the amount of $9,896.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31. 2013

NOTE C - CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS

1. Cash and Deposits

Colorado State Statutes govern the County’s deposits of cash. The statutes specify eligible depositories
for public cash deposits, which must be Colorado institutions and must maintain federal insurance
(FDIC) on deposits held.

The Colorado Public Deposit Protections Act (PDPA) requires that all units of local government deposit
cash in eligible public depositories determined by state regulators. Amounts on deposits in excess of
federal insurance levels must be collateralized in accordance with the PDPA. PDPA allows the institution
to create a single collateral pool for all public funds to be maintained by another institution or held in
trust for all the uninsured public deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must be at least
102% of the aggregate uninsured deposits.

Custodial Credit Risk- Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the failure of a depository institution, a government
will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. At December 31, 2013, $1,882,232 was exposed to custodial credit risk.
Deposits exposed to credit risk are collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial
institutions through PDPA.

2. Investments
The County’s investments are subject to interest rate, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

The types of investments which are authorized to be made with County funds are controlled by state
statute and the investment policies of the County. Colorado statutes and the County’s investment policies
specify investment instruments meeting defined rating and risk criteria in which the County may invest:

Obligations of the United States and certain U.S. Government agency securities
Certain international agency securities

General obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities
Bankers’ acceptances of certain banks

Commercial paper

Local government investment pools

Repurchase agreements

e Money market funds

e Guaranteed investment contracts

¢ Corporate or bank debt issued by eligible corporations or banks
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31. 2013

NOTE C - CASH, DEPOSITS, AND INVESTMENTS- CONTINUED

2. Investments- Continued

Credit Risk

The County’s investment policy calls for investment diversification within the portfolio to avoid
unreasonable risk inherent in over investing in specific instruments, individual financial institutions or
maturities. The County’s investment policy allows for the County to invest in local government
investment pools. As of December 31, 2013, the local government investment pool (ColoTrust) in which
the County had invested, was rated AAA by Standard & Poor’s.

Cash in banks $ 2,502,287
Cash on hand 6,403
Investments (ColoTrust) 6.270
Total cash, deposits, and investments: (Book Balance) 2,514,960
Less: amounts related to Trust & Agency Fund (192.043)

Total cash, deposits, and investments on statement of net position § 2322917

Interest Rate Risk

Colorado Revised Statutes limit investment maturities to five years or less from date of purchase. This
limit on investment maturities is a means of limiting exposure to fair values arising from increasing
interest rates. The County has no investments with maturities past five years.

The Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST), is an investment vehicle established for
local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Part 7 of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado Revised
Statutes, to pool surplus funds for investment purposes. COLOTRUST operates similarly to a money
market fund and each share is equal in value to $1. The fair value of the position in the pool is the same
as the value of the pool shares. The designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository
services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal functions. Substantially all securities
owned by the pool are held by the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial
bank. The custodian’s internal records identify the investments owned by the pool. Investments of the
pool consist of U.S. Treasury bills, notes and note strips and repurchased agreements collateralized by
U.S. Treasury notes.

NOTE D - INTERFUND ACTIVITY

The County reports interfund balances between many of its funds. The balances resulted from the time
lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.
Interfund balances are generally expected to be repaid within one year of the financial statement date.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

NOTE D - INTERFUND ACTIVITY - CONTINUED

Interfund transfers for the year ended December 31, 2013 are as follows:

General Fund

Road and Bridge Fund
Sheriff Fund

Public Health Fund
Ambulance Fund
Snow grooming Fund
EMS Fund

Lodging Tax Fund
Title 111 Fund

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS

000
500
500
750

Transfers In Transfers Out
$ 17,750  § 58,
10,225
9,980
50,000 9,
3,000
5,000
10,000
- 17,
- 20,

205

$ 105955 § 105,

955

Capital assets activity for the year ended December 31, 2013, was a follows:

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2013 Additions Deletions 2014
GOVERNMENT ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land b 857.400 $ - § - % 857.400
Total capital assets not being depreciated 857.400 - - 857.400
Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and Improvements 1,955,124 - - 1,955,124

Machinery and Equipment 2,303,470 - - 2,303,470

Vehicles 632,726 83.778 24,329 692,175
Total capital assets being depreciated 4,891,320 83,778 24,329 4,950,769
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings 1,012,189 190,424 - 1,202,613

Machinery and Equipment 1,831,446 92,148 - 1,923,594

Vehicles 546.432 37.350 24.329 559.453
Total accumulated depreciation 3.390.067 319.922 24329 3.685.660
Total Capital Assets being depreciated, net 1,501,253 (236.144) - 1,265,109

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 2358653 § (236.144) § - § 2122509
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2013

NOTE E - CAPITAL ASSETS — CONTINUED

BUSINESS- TYPE ACTIVITIES
Capital assets not be depreciated

Land 8 6327 § - 3 -3 6.327
Total capital assets not be depreciated 6,327 - - 6,327
Capital assets being depreciated

Equipment 261.280 - — 261,280
Total capital assets being depreciated 261.280 - - 261,280
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Equipment 163,028 13.101 - 176,129
Capital assets being depreciated, net 08,252 13,101 — 85.151
BUSINESS- TYPE ACTIVITIES
CAPITAL ASSETS, NET $ 104.579 § 13.101 $ - $ 91.478

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/ programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 199,873
Public Safety 31,253
Health and Welfare 1,250
Highways and Streets 85,992
Culture and Recreation 1.554

Total depreciation expense — governmental activities § 319.922

NOTE F - LONG- TERM DEBT

Long- term liability balances for the year ended December 31, 2013 were as follows:

Balance Balance Due
December 31, December 31, Within
2012 Additions Deletions 2013 One Year

Governmental Activities:

Lease Purchase Computer Software $§ 18,878 §$ - $§ 18878 % -9 -

Compensated Absences 63.125 11.981 — 75.106 - 44.564
Total Governmental Activities

Long- term Liabilities $ 82003 % 11981 % 18878 § 75,106 § 44564

Lease Purchase Agreements

In December of 2009 the County entered into a lease purchase agreement with Tyler Technologies
(Diversified Lenders, Inc.) for the purchase of a new computer system. The terms of the lease call for
five (5) annual payments of $11,256.40 beginning January 15, 2010 and continuing annually thereafter.
The total cost of the system was $45,027. The lease was paid in full in 2013.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31. 2013

NOTE G - RETIREMENT
Pension Plans

The County is a member of the Colorado County Officials and Employees Retirement Association
(COERA) which offers a defined contribution pension plan 401(a), and a Section 457 deferred
compensation plan. COERA was organized in 1966 pursuant to state statutes, and includes counties,
municipalities and special districts. Required contributions established by the governing board of the
Association.

Defined Contribution Pension Plan

Under a defined contribution pension plan, the benefits a participant receives depend solely on the
amount contributed to the participant’s account plus the returns earned on investments of those
contributions.

Participation is mandatory for all employees after one year of employment. Eligible employees
contribute four percent (4%) of their base pay which is matched by the County. The plan has a five (5)
year vesting period and is distributed upon the employee’s termination or retirement. Two (2) additional
voluntary plans are also offered. One plan provides for contributions up to ten percent (10%) of an
employee’s base pay while the other plan provides for deferred compensation in which the employee
may tax shelter up to nineteen percent (19%) of their base pay.

During the year, the County’s required and actual contributions amounted to $48,788 which was four
percent (4%) of its current year covered payroll of $1,219,900. The County’s total payroll for 2013 was
$1,472,268.

Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all County employees, permits them to defer a portion
of their salary until future years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until
termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those
amounts, and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are to be held in trust for the
exclusive benefit of the plan participants and their beneficiaries.

The accrual basis of accounting is used for the plan. Revenues are recognized when earned and
expenditures are recognized when incurred. Investments are recorded at market value.

The County has no liability for losses under the plan but does have the duty of due care what would be
required of an ordinary prudent investor. The County does not administer the plan and is not the Trustee
of the plan.
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December 31. 2013

NOTE H-TABOR AMENDMENT RESERVE

Colorado voters passed an amendment to the State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, which has several
limitations, including revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific requirements of state and
local governments. The amendment is complex and subject to judicial interpretation. The County
believes it is in compliance with the requirements of the amendment.

Fiscal year spending and revenue limits are determined based on the prior year’s spending adjusted for
inflation and local growth. The voters of the County have approved a measure that allows the County to
retain and spend revenue in excess of the limit.

The amendment also requires that Emergency Reserves be established. These reserves must be at least 3
percent of fiscal year spending. The Emergency Reserve has been presented as restricted fund balance in
the General fund. The County is not allowed to use the Emergency Reserves to compensate for economic
conditions, revenue shortfalls, or salary or benefit increases.

NOTE I - RISK MANAGEMENT

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or, damage to and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the government carries commercial
insurance.

The County mitigates risk through the following self- insurance pools:
Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (CAAP)

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to property and casualty losses. The County joined
together with other counties in the State of Colorado to form the Colorado Counties Casualty and
Property Pool (CAPP), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and
insurance program for member counties. The County pays an annual contribution to CAPP for its
property and casualty insurance coverage. The inter-governmental agreement of formation of CAPP
provides that the pool will be financially self-sustaining though member contributions and additional
assessments, if necessary, and the Pool will purchase excess insurance though commercial companies for
members’ claims in excess of a specified self-insured retention that is determined each policy year. There
have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from these risks have not
exceeded insurance coverage for the current year or the three prior years.
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NOTE I - RISK MANAGEMENT - CONTINUED
Colorado Workers’ Compensation Pool (CWCP)

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to injuries of employees while on the job. The
County has joined together with other counties in the State of Colorado to form the Colorado Workers’
Compensation Pool (CWCP), a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management
and insurance program for member counties. The County pays an annual contribution to CWCP for its
workers’ compensation insurance coverage. The inter-governmental agreement of formation of CWCP
provides that the pool will be financially self-sustaining though member contributions and additional
assessments, if necessary, and the Pool will purchase excess insurance through commercial companies
for members’ claims in excess of a specified self- insured retention that is determined each policy year.
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage. Settled claims from these risks have not
exceeded insurance coverage for the current year of the three prior years.

NOTE J - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The County participates in a member of federal and state grant programs. These programs are subject to
program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The amount of expenditures, if any,
which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time although the County
expects any such amounts to be immaterial.

The County is a member of the Colorado Counties Casualty and Property Pool (CAPP) and the Colorado
Workers’” Compensation Pool (CWCP). CAPP and CWCP have a legal obligation for claims against its
members to the extent that funds are available in their annually established loss funds and amounts are
available from insurance providers under excess specific and aggregate insurance contracts. Losses
incurred in excess of loss funds are direct liabilities of the participating members. CAPP and CWCP have
indicated that the amount of any excess losses would be billed to members in proportion to their
contributions in the year such excess occurs. The ultimate liability to the County resulting from claims
not covered by CAPP and CWCP is not presently determinable.

NOTE K - PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT

The County has posted a prior period adjustment in the Sheriff’s fund to recognize 2012 revenue from
Lake City to provide law enforcement services in the amount of $12,152 and in the General fund to
properly recognize 2012 sales tax revenue in the amount of $49,436. These adjustment both increase
fund balance in the respective funds by the amounts noted and increase beginning fund balance in the
government wide statement of activities by $61,588.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Blances, Budget and Actual
General Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 945,820 $ 945,820 $ 983,399 5 37,579
Intergovernmental 344,374 344,374 897,168 552,794
Licenses and permits 16,850 16,850 15,350 (1,500)
Interest on investments 5,500 5,500 9,539 4,039
Charges for services 93,500 93,500 133,670 40,170
Reimbursement - - 1,002 1,002
Miscellaneous 284,635 284,635 16,763 (267,872)
Total reveunues 1,690,679 1,690,679 2,056,891 366,212
Expenditures
Current expenditures
General government 1,745,539 1,745,539 1,818,787 (73,248)
Total expenditures 1,745,539 1,745,539 1,818,787 (73,248)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (54.860) (54,860) 238,104 292,964
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in 13,369 13,365 17,750 4,381
Transfer out (8,750) (8,750) (58,000) (49,250)
Total other financing sources (uses) 4,619 4619 (40,250) (44,869)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) (50,241) (50,241) 197,854 248,095
Beginning fund balance 1,204,407 1,204,407 1,204,407 -
Prior period adjustment - - 49,436 49,436
Beginning fund balance, restated 1,204,407 1,204,407 1,253,843 49,436
Fund balance at end of year $1,154,166 $ 1,154,166 $1,451,697 3 297,531

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Blances, Budget and Actual
Road and Bridge Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues

Taxes $ 21,253 § 21,253 § 22,204 3 951

Intergovernmental 879,311 879,311 1,048,830 169,519

Charges for services 217,000 217,000 140,027 (76,973)

Reimbursement 26,300 26,300 25,418 (882)

Miscellaneous 4,000 4,000 - (4,000)
Total reveunues 1,147,864 1,147,864 1,236,479 88,615
Expenditures

Current expenditures

Highways and streets 1,070,119 1,070,119 1,104,700 (34,581)
Capital outlay 89,244 89,244 89,787 (543)
Debt service

Principal 25,500 25,500 - 25,500

Total expenditures 1,184,863 1,184,863 1,194,487 (9,624)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (36,999) (36,999) 41,992 78,991
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfer in - - 10,225 10,225
Total other financing sources (uses) - - 10,225 10,225
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

expenditures and other sources (uses) (36,999) (36,999) 52,217 89,216
Fund balance at beginning of year 506,768 506,768 506,768 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 469,769 § 469,769 $ 558,985 3 89,216

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Blances, Budget and Actual
Sheriff Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 355,049 $ 355,049 $ 365,687 $ 10,638
Intergovernmental 64,522 64,522 96,078 31,556
Charges for services 2,500 2,500 6,336 3,836
Reimbursement 17,120 17,120 27,118 9,998
Miscellaneous 4,000 4,000 9,951 5,951
Total reveunues 443,191 443,191 505,170 61,979
Expenditures
Current expenditures
Public safety 439,620 439,620 452,123 (12,503)
Capital outlay 123,000 123,000 76,303 46,697
Total expenditures 562,620 562,620 528,426 34,194
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (119,429) (119,429) (23,256) 96,173
Other financing sources
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 121,000 121,000 12,000 (109,000)
Transfers in - - 9,980 9,580
Total other financing sources 121,000 121,000 21,980 (99,020)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures and
other financing sources 1,571 1,571 (1,276) (2,847)
Fund balance at beginning of year 187,483 187,483 187,483 -
Prior period adjustment - - 12,152 12,152
Beginning fund balance, restated 187,483 187.483 199,635 12,152
Fund balance at end of year $ 189,054 $ 189,054 $ 198,359 $ 9,305

The accompanying footnotes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds

December 31,2013

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory

Total assets

Liabilities
Unearned revenue
Accounts payable

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows
Property taxes

Fund Balance
Nonspendable
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Restricted
Human services
Marketing and advertising
Open space
Retirement
Snow grooming
Schools and roads
Emergency medical services
Public Health
Assigned
Ambulance replacement
Total Fund Balances

Public Human Lodging
Title III Health Services Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund
$§ 125,802 $ 111,942 $ 37,241 $ 43,132
- 1,640 - -
- 1,248 - -
125,802 114,830 37,241 43,132
125,712 - - .
- 92 8,769 31,646
125,712 92 8,769 31,646
- 1,248 - -
- - 28,472 -
- - - 11,486
920 - - -
- 113,490 - -
3 90 $ 114,738 $ 28472 $ 11,486
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Combining Balance Sheet

Non-Major Governmental Funds

December 31,2013
Total
Ambulance Conservation Snow Non-Major
Replacement Trust Retirement Grooming EMS Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

$ 57,677 $ 5,431 k) 60,307 $ 11,048 15,621 3 468,201
- 1,117 - 4,222 11,293 18,272

- - 46,980 - - 46,980

- - - 3,518 3,801 8,567

- - - - 16,025 16,025

57,677 6,548 107,287 18,788 46,740 558,045

- - - - - 125,712

- - - 35 1,110 41,652

- - - 35 1,110 167,364

- - 46,980 - - 46,980

- - - 3,518 3,801 8,567

- - - - 16,025 16,025

- - - - - 28,472

. - - - - 11,486

- 6,548 - - - 6,548

- - 60,307 - - 60,307

- - - 15,235 - 15,235

. . - - - 90

- - - - 25,804 25,804

- - - - - 113,490

57,677 - - - - 57,677

3 57,677 $ 6,548 3 60,307 § 18,753 45,630 $ 343,701
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,

Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Public Human Lodging
Title 111 Health Services Tax
Fund Fund Fund Fund
Revenues
Taxes 3 - § 21,046 b 1,560 $§ 50,962
Intergovernmental revenue 25,505 113,410 343 -
Charges for services - 22,974 - -
Miscellaneous 21 17,677 - -
Total revenues 25,526 175,107 1,903 50,962
Expenditures
Current expenditures
General government - - - -
Health and welfare - 198,882 35,338 -
Culture and recreation 5,300 - - 31,646
Total expenditures 5,300 198,882 35,338 31,646
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 20,226 (23,775) (33,435) 19,316
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers In - 50,000 - -
Transfers (out) (20,205) (9,500) - (17,750)
Total other financing sources (uses) (20,205) 40,500 - (17,750)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
and other sources (uses) 21 16,725 (33,435) 1,566
Fund balance at beginning of year 69 98,013 61,907 9,920
Fund balance at end of year $ 90 $ 114,738 $ 28472 $ 11,486
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Non-Major Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Total
Ambulance Conservation Snow Non-Major
Replacement Trust Retirement Grooming EMS Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds
$ - 5 - 5 52,926 b - § 10,657 p 137,151
- 4,585 - 29,291 43,580 216,714
- - - - 45,738 68,712
155 - - 204 8,564 26,621
155 4,585 52,926 29,495 108,539 449,198
- - 51,276 - - 51,276
- - - - 132,104 366,324
- 17,830 - 27,034 - 81,810
- 17,830 51,276 27,034 132,104 499,410
155 (13,245) 1,650 2,461 (23,565) (50,212)
3,000 - - 5,000 10,000 68,000
- - - - (500) (47,955)
3,000 - - 5,000 9,500 20,045
3,155 (13,245) 1,650 7,461 (14,065) (30,167)
54,522 19,793 58,657 11,292 59,695 373,868
$ 57,677 $ 6,548 $ 60,307 $ 18,753 § 45,630 $ 343,701
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Title III

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Revenues
Intergovernmental revenue
Interest on investments
Total revenues

Expenditures
Culture and recreation
Total expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
§ 30,000 $ 30,000 b 25,505 $ (4,495)
- - 21 21
30,000 30,000 25,526 (4,474)
- - 5,300 (5,300
- - 5,300 (5,300)
(145,041) (145,041) (20,205) 124,836
(145,041) (145,041) (20,205) 124,836
(115,041) (115,041) 21 115,062
69 69 69 -
$ (114,972) & (114972)  § 90 5 115,062




Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Blances, Budget and Actual
Public Health Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual {(Negative)
Revenues
Taxes $ 10,306 $ 10,306 § 21,046 $ 10,740
Intergovernmental 123,765 123,765 113,410 (10,355)
Charges for services 27,542 27,542 22,974 (4,568)
Miscellaneous 6,985 6,985 17,677 10,692
Total revenues 168,598 168,598 175,107 6,509
Expenditures
Health and welfare 212,945 212,945 198,882 14,063
Total expenditures 212,945 212,945 198,882 14,063
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (44,347) (44,347) (23,775) 20,572
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer in 54,900 54,900 50,000 (4,900)
Transfer out - - (9,500) (9,500)
Total other financing sources (uses) 54,900 54,900 40,500 (14,400)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) 10,553 10,553 16,725 15,672
Fund balance at beginning of year 98,013 68,013 98,013 -
Fund balance at end of vear § 108,566 3 108,566 $ 114,738 $ 6,172
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Human Services Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
General property taxes 3 1,108 h) 1,108 5 1,426 $ 318
Specific ownership taxes 1,875 1,875 75 (1,800)
Delinquent taxes and interest 168 168 59 (109)
Intergovernmental revenue - - 343 343
Total revenues 3,151 3,151 1,903 (1,248)
Expenditures
Health and welfare 35,800 35,800 35338 462
Total expenditures 35,800 35,800 35,338 462
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (32.649) (32,649) (33,435) (786)
Fund balance at beginning of year 61,907 61,907 61,907 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 29,258 $ 29,258 $ 28,472 3 (786)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Lodging Tax Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Lodging tax $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 50,962 $ 10,962
Total revenues 40,000 40,000 50,962 10,962
Expenditures
Culture and recreation 39,500 39,500 31,646 7,854
Total expenditures 39,500 39,500 31,646 7,854
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 500 500 19,316 18,816
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfer out - - (17,750) (17,750)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
expenditures and other sources (uses) 500 500 1,566 1,066
Fund balance at beginning of year 9,920 9,920 9,920 -
Fund balance at end of year § 10,420 5 10,420 $ 11,486 $ 18,816
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Ambulance Replacement Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

Revenues

Interest Income $ 1,000 3 1,000 $ 155 $ (845)

Grants 77,000 77,000 - (77,000)
Total revenues 78,000 78,000 155 (77,845)
Expenditures 159,000 159,000 - 159,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures (81,000) (81,000) 155 81,155
Other financing sources (uses)

Proceeds from sale of assets 20,000 20,000 - (20,000)

Transfers in (out) 3,000 3,000 3,000 -
Total other financing sources (uses) 23,000 23,000 3,000 (20,000)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

and other sources (uses) (58,000) (58,000) 3,155 61,155
Fund balance at beginning of year 54,522 54,522 54,522 -
Fund balance at end of year $ (3478 3 (3478) $ 57,677 $ 61,155




Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Conservation Trust Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernamental revenue i 4,500 $ 4,500 $ 4,585 $ 85

Total Revenues 4,500 4,500 4,585 85
Expenditures - - 17,830 (17,830)
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures 4,500 4,500 (13,245) (17,745)
Fund balance at beginning of year 19,793 15,793 19,793 -
Fund balance at end of year $ 247293 $ 24293 $ 6,548 b (17,745)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Retirement Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Revenues
Taxes
General property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Delinquent taxes and interest
Total revenues

Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
§ 49981 § 49981 § 49,207 $ (774)
2,310 2,310 3,324 1,014
236 236 395 159
52,527 52,527 52,926 399
50,033 50,033 51,276 (1,243)
2,494 2,494 1,650 (844)
58,657 58,657 58,657 -
§ 61,151 $ 61,151 $ 60,307 $ (844)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,
Budget and Actual - Snow Grooming Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Revenues
Trail maintenance fees
Interest income
Miscellaneous sources
Total revenues
Expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources
Transfers in

Excess of revenue over expeditures and other
financing sources

Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Variance With
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 28,000 $ 28,000 $§ 29,291 i) 1,291
50 50 54 4
- - 150 150
28,050 28,050 29,495 1,445
28,367 28,367 27,034 1,333
G317 317) 2461 2,778
5,000 5,000 5,000 -
4,683 4,683 7,461 2,778
11,292 11,292 11,292 -
§ 10,975 $ 10975 $ 18,753 $ 7,778
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances,

Budget and Actual - Emergency Medical Services Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Revenues
Property taxes
Specific ownership taxes
Interest & penalties on taxes
Grant revenue
Intergovernmental subsidy
Donations
Charges for services , net
Miscellaneous sources
Total revenues

Expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenue over expenditures
Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

and other sources (uses)
Fund balance at beginning of year

Fund balance at end of year

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
$ 19,568 § 19,568 $ 9,903 b (9,665)
945 945 664 (281
105 105 90 (15)
28,500 28,500 28,580 80
15,000 15,000 15,000 -
4,000 4,000 8,564 4,564
50,000 50,000 45,738 (4,262)
1,000 1,000 - (1,000)
119,118 119,118 108,539 (10,579)
123,247 123,247 132,104 (8,857)
(4,129) (4,129) (23,565) (19,436)
- - 10,000 10,000
- - {500) (500)
- - 9,500 9,500
(4,129) (4,129) (14,065) (9,936)
59,695 59,695 59,695 -
$ 55,566 $ 55566 $ 45,630 8 (9,936)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position,

Budget and Actual - Transfer Station Fund

For the Year ended December 31,2013

Variance With
Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:

Disposal fees $ 114,600 § 114,600 $ 112,253 $ (2,347)
Total revenue 114,600 114,600 112,253 (2,347)
Operating expenses:

Operating expenses 99,041 99,041 114,661 (15,620)
Total expenses 99,041 99,041 114,661 (15,620)
Change in net position 15,559 15,559 (2,408) (17,967)
Net position at beginning of year 77,708 77,708 77,708 -
Net position at end of year $ 93,267 $ 93,267 $ 75,300 $ (17,967)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Net Position - Budget and Actual
Recreation Fund

For the Year ended December 31, 2013

Variance With

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Operating revenues:

Recreation fees $ 23,200 $ 23,200 $ 22822 § (378)
Total revenues 23,200 23,200 22,822 (378)
Operating expenses 22,354 22,354 28,980 (6,626)
Total expenses 22354 22,354 28,980 (6,626)
Change in net position 846 846 (6,158) 6,248
Net position at beginning of year 44,433 44433 44,433 -
Net position at end of year $ 45279 $ 45279 $ 38275 § (7,004)
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the year ended December 31, 2013

Department of Agriculture

Schools and Roads - Grants to States 10.665
Title I 315,106
Title 111 25,950
Total School and Roads - Grants to States 341,056
Total Department of Agriculture 341,056

Department of Health and Human Services
Passed through the Colorado Department of Human Services

Child Care and Development Block Grant 93.575 1,744
Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the

Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 30,195
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 154
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 121
Adoption Assistance 93.659 283
Child Support Enforcement 93.563 o1
Foster Care_ Title IV-E 93.658 5,442
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 2,523
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 3,112
Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program 93.645 146
Total passed through the Colorado Department of

Human Services 42,809

Passed through the Colorado Department of Public Health
and Environment
Hospital Preparedness Program and Public Health
Emergency Preparedness Aligned Cooperative

Agreements 93.074 14,278
Total Department of Health and Human Services 57,087
Department of the Interior Bureau of Land Management
Environmental Quality and Protection Resource Management 15.236 10,000
Recreation Resource Management 15.225 2,000
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 15.226 131,409
Total Department of the Interior Bureau of Land Management 143,409
Environmental Protection Agency
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants 66.460 95,255
Total federal award expenditures 3 636,807

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended December 31, 2013

NOTE A - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of Hinsdale County,
Colorado and is presented on the modified accrual basis. Expenditures are recognized when they become a
demand on current available financial resources. The information in this schedule is presented in
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit
Organizations. Therefore, some amounts in this schedule may differ from the amounts presented in, or
used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE B - REPORTING ENTITY

The financial reporting entity consists of Hinsdale County, Colorado (the County) as the primary
government.

NOTE C - PASS-THROUGH AWARDS
The County receives certain federal monies as pass-through awards from the State of Colorado. The
amounts received are commingled by the State of Colorado with other funds. Only the federal amount of

such pass-through awards is included in the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

NOTE D - CLUSTERS

The following programs are reported as clusters:

Federal
CFDA
Program Title Number Amount
CCDF Cluster
Childcare and Development Block Grant 93.575 $ 1,744
Childcare Mandatory and Matching Funds of the
Childcare Development Fund 93.596 30,195
Total CCDF Cluster $§ 31939
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended December 31, 2013

NOTE E - CONTRACT WITH OTHER GOVERNMENT

Hinsdale County contracts with Gunnison County to provide services under the programs provided by the
Department of Human Services grants listed below.

Child Care and Development Block Grant

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care

And Development Fund
Medical Assistance Program
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families
Adoption Assistance
Child Support Enforcement
Foster Care Tile IV-E
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance
Social Services Block Grant

Stephanie Tubbs Jones Child Welfare Services Program

Total programs administered by Gunnison County

93.575

93.596
93.778
93.558
93.659
93.563
93.658
93.568
93.667
93.645

$ 1,744

30,195
154

121

283

(911)

5,442

2,523

3,112

146

$  42.809

These balances are not reported in the financial statements for Hinsdale County since the funds are passed

through to Gunnison County.
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Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C. Consultants and Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

October 9, 2014

To the Board of County Commissioners
Hinsdale County, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Hinsdale County, Colorado, as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Hinsdale County,
Colorado ’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 9, 2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements
on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs to be material weaknesses. The findings are listed as 2013-001, 2013-002 and 2013-003.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hinsdale County, Colorado’s financial statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

225 North 5th Street , Suite 401 www:cBtdcpa.com 970/245-3000

Grand Junction, CO 81501-2645 e-mail info@csdcpa.com Fax 970/242-4716
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Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C. Consultants and Certified Public Accountants

Board of County Commissioners
October 9, 2014
Page 2

Hinsdale County, Colorado’s Response to Findings

Hinsdale County, Colorado’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs. Hinsdale County, Colorado’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

D he docecen, Atidiiveni ,Dacis s CONP.
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Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C. Consultants and Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

October 9,2014

To the Board of County Commissioners
Hinsdale County, Colorado

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Hinsdale County, Colorado’s compliance with the types of compliance requirements described in the
OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of Hinsdale County,
Colorado’s major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2013. Hinsdale County, Colorado’s major federal
programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying scheduie of findings and
questioned costs. '

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hinsdale County, Colorado’s major federal
programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
Hinsdale County, Colorado’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal program.
However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hinsdale County, Colorado’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, Hinsdale County, Colorado complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs
identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
for the year ended December 31, 2013.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of Hinsdale County, Colorado, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our audit of
compliance, we considered Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each
major federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-
133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hinsdale County, Colorado’s internal control over

compliance.
225 North 5th Street , Suite 401 www.csdcpa.com 970/245-3000
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Chadwick, Steinkirchner, Davis & Co., P.C. Consultants and Certified Public Accountants

Board of County Commissioners
October 9, 2014
Page 2

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance does
not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect
and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material
weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly,
this report is not suitable for any other purpose.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year ended December 31, 2013

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Ungualified Opinion
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? v yes no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses? v yes none reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted? yes v no

Federal Awards

Internal Control over major programs:
Material weakness(es) identified?
Significant deficiency(ies) identified
not considered to be material weaknesses?

yes v no

yes v none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major programs: Unqualified Opinion

Any audit findings disclosed that are required
to be reported in accordance with

Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? yes v no

Identification of major programs:

CEDA Number(s)  Name of Federal Program or Cluster

10.665 Schools and Roads — Grants to States

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? yes v no
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — CONTINUED

Year ended December 31, 2013

SECTION II - FINDINGS UNDER GENERALLY ACCEPTED GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

2013-001
Material weakness in internal control over financial reporting

Criteria

Proper internal controls as defined by the COSO Integrated Framework dictate that there should be adequate
segregation of duties between those who have authority to approve transactions, those who have custody of
assets and those who account for the operations of the entity.

Condition

The small staff at Hinsdale County hinders the achievement of adequate segregation of duties. As a result
there were multiple adjustments to the general ledger at the end of the year to properly state the financial
statements. During the audit CSD selected one month during the year and traced checks and deposits from
the bank statements to the general ledger. There was information on the statement that we were unable to
trace to the general ledger detail and there was nobody working at the time in the County who could trace
this information. This is a result of having one individual with the responsibility for receiving and depositing
funds, recording those deposits and reconciling bank statements to the general ledger.

Audit work also revealed that the Treasurer has access to check stock, has the ability to sign checks on the
County’s operating account and also reconciles the bank statements. Furthermore at the time of fieldwork
there is no monitoring or oversight of the Treasurer’s accounting activities.

Cause
There is a lack of segregation of duties in the County’s Finance department and Treasurer’s office related to

authority, custody and accounting of operations.

Effect
The lack of segregation of duties increases the risk that the financial statements are misstated due to errors or

fraud.

Recommendation

We recommend that a regular review process is established by the County finance department to review and
approve all journal entry activity and reconciliations performed in the finance department and that the
Treasurer’s office also institute procedures to allow for review of reconciliations and journal entries that are
posted. There should also be sufficient cross-training to allow for another individual to step in and take over
the duties of each position in finance and the Treasurer’s office to maintain continuity of the financial
recording and reporting process if necessary.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS ~ CONTINUED

Year ended December 31, 2013

2013-001 — Continued

County Response

A Deputy Treasurer was hired in 2014 to provide for segregation of duties. As of the end of September, the
Deputy Treasurer was appointed by the Board of County Commissioners due to the death of the County
Treasurer. The process for deposit entry has been changed to allow for tracking from the General Ledger
directly to deposits on the bank statement. The budget allows for a new Deputy Treasurer to be hired in the
future.

2013-002
Material weakness in internal control over financial reporting

Criteria

The County should have someone on staff or provide the training so that a member of the County’s finance
staff has the knowledge and tools necessary to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Condition
The County currently does not have the ability to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles.

Cause
The County does not currently have finance staff with the training to compile a set of financial statements in

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principals as applied to local governments.

Effect
This increases the risk that the financial statements could be materially misstated and such misstatements

could go undetected.

Recommendation
The County should acquire the knowledge to be able to prepare financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles or contract with a professional who can provide this service.

County Response

A proposal to the Board of Commissioners is in progress to add the Accounts Receivable Module to our
accounting software. This should alleviate the manual GL entries from another software program as far as
the Revenue reporting.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — CONTINUED

Year ended December 31, 2013

2013-003
Significant deficiency in internal control over inventory

Criteria

Inventory should be counted periodically throughout the year and adjusted on a regular basis or counted on
the last day of the year and adjusted to allow for an accurate valuation of inventory in the financial
statements.

Condition
The County performed the inventory for Road and Bridge after the end of the year and costs used to value
inventory appeared inconsistent and were missing information.

Cause
The County currently does not have an accurate inventory count at the end of the year for all Road and

Bridge locations

Effect
Inventory could be materially misstated at the end of the year and go undetected. Additionally, inaccurate
and irregular reconciliations of inventory balances increase the risk that misappropriation could occur and go

undetected.

Recommendations
The County should have written policies and procedures for counting and valuing inventory on hand.
Inventory should be counted as close to year-end as practical in order to properly state inventory and expense
in the financial statements.

County Response
The County will prepare a written procedure for inventory and make sure the count is done at the end of the

fiscal year.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS — CONTINUED

Year ended December 31, 2013

SECTION III - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS UNDER OMB CIRCULAR A-133

No findings or questioned costs under OMB Circular -133 in the current year.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year ended December 31, 2012

12-01
Material Weakness

Condition

The small staff at Hinsdale County did not allow for a proper segregation of duties and there was lack of a
review and monitoring process over the financial accounting and reporting function. Additionally, there was
no review and approval of journal entries posted to the general ledger.

Status of finding
Not corrected.

Comments

The finding has been reported in the current year as 2013-001. The timing of completion of the last audit did
not allow for implementation of new internal controls and observation during the audit did not indicate that
new controls were in place to allow for proper segregation of duties.

12-02
Material Weakness

Condition
The County should carefully monitor and account for all of the activity in EMS fund that is contracted out to
a third party service provider.

Status of finding
Corrected.

Comments
The EMS Director appears to be monitoring the activity accounted and billed for by the third party service
provider on a regular basis.

12-03
Material Weakness

Condition
The County currently does not have the ability to prepare financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

Status of finding
Not corrected.

Comment
This finding has been reported again as 2013-002.
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Hinsdale County, Colorado
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year ended December 31, 2012

12-04
Compliance

Condition
The County prepared a schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year ended December 31, 2012
that was materially incomplete at the time of audit fieldwork.

Status of finding
Corrected.

Comments
The list of federal awards provided in the current year appears to be materially complete.

12-05
Compliance
10.665 Schools and Roads — Grants to States

Condition
The County expended Title III funds for a fire that happened during 2012 but did not submit a report for
these expenditures by February 1.

Status
Corrected.

Comment
The County provided necessary reporting for 2008 — 2013 during the year ended December 31, 2013.
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Financial Planning 02/01

The public report burden for this information collection is estimated to average 380 hours annually. Form # 350-050-36
City or County:
HINSDALE COUNTY
LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT YEAR ENDING :
December 2013

This Information From The Records Of (example - City of _ or County of )
County of Hinsdale

Prepared By: Lynn Olson, Accounting
Phone: 970-944-2225

L. DISPOSITION OF HIGHWAY-USER REVENUES AVAILABLE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT EXPENDITURE

A. Local
Motor-Fuel

ITEM

B. Local
Motor-Vehicle

C. Receipts from
State Highway-

Taxes

1. Total receipts available

2. Minus amount used for collection expenses
3. Minus amount used for nonhighway purposes
4. Minus amount used for mass transit

5. Remainder used for highway purposes

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES

Taxes User Taxes

I11. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD
AND STREET PURPOSES

D. Receipts from
Federal Highway
Administration

ITEM
A. Receipts from local sources:

AMOUNT

TTEM [
A. Local highway disbursements:

_ AMOUNT

1. Bonds (Refunding Portion)

B. Notes (Total)

1. Local highway-user taxes 1. Capital outlay (from page 2) 0
a. Motor Fuel (from Item 1.A.5)) 2. Maintenance: 680,201
b. Motor Vehicle (from Item 1.B.5.) 3. Road and streel services:
c. Total (a.+b.) a. Traffic control operations 74,963
2. General fund appropriations 0 b. Snow and ice removal 73,266
3. Other local imposts (from page 2) 22,055 c. Other 63,432
4. Miscellaneous local receipts (from page 2) 145,879 d. Total (a. through c.) 211,661
5. Transfers from toll facilities 0 4. General administration & miscellaneous 327,814
6. Proceeds of sale of bonds and notes: 5. Highway law enforcement and safety 0
a. Bonds - Original Issues 0 6. Total (1 through 5) 1,219,676
b. Bonds - Refunding Issues 0 IB. Debt service on local obligations:
c. Notes 0 1. Bonds:
d. Total (a.+b.+¢c.) 0 a. Interest
7. Total (1 through 6) 167,935 b. Redemption
B. Private Contributions c. Total (a. +b.) 0
C. Receipts from State government 2. Notes:
(from page 2) 692,587 a. Interest
D. Receipts from Federal Government b. Redemption
(from page 2) 386,183 c. Total (a. +b,) 0
E. Total receipts (A.T+ B+ C+ D) 1,246,705 3. Total (I.c+2.c) 0
C. Payments to State for highways
D. Payments to toll facilities
E. Total disbursements (A.6 + B3+ C + D) 1,219,676
IV. LOCAL HIGHWAY DEBT STATUS
(Show all entries at par)
Opening Debt Amount Issued Redemptions Closing Debt
A. Bonds (Total) 0

V. LOCAL ROAD AND STREET FUND BALANCE

A. Beginning Balance| B. Total Receipts

C. Total Disbursementy

D. Ending Balance

E. Reconciliation

361,945 1,246,705

1,219,676

388,974

Notes and Comments:

"FORM FHWA536 (Rev. 1-05)

PREVIOUS EDITIONS OBSOLETE
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LOCAL HIGHWAY FINANCE REPORT

STATE:
Colorado

December 2013

YEAR ENDING (mm/yy):

II. RECEIPTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

(Carry forward to page 1)

i. Total (a. throuih h.)

ITEM AMOUNT ITEM | AMOUNT
A.3. Other local imposts: A.4. Miscellaneous local receipts:
a. Property Taxes and Assessments 20,652 a. Interest on investments 0
b. Other local imposts: R b. Traffic Fines & Penalities 149
1. Sales Taxes 0 c. Parking Garage Fees 0
2. Infrastructure & Impact Fees 0 d. Parking Meter Fees 0
3. Liens 0 e. Sale of Surplus Property 0
4. Licenses 0 f. Charges for Services 140,027
5. Specific Ownership &/or Other 1,403 g. Other Misc. Receipts 468
6. Total (1. through 5.) 1,403 h. Other 5,235
c. Total (a. +b.) 22,055 145,879

(Carry forward to page 1)

II1. DISBURSEMENTS FOR ROAD AND STREET PURPOSES - DETAIL

ITEM AMOUNT ITEM AMOUNT
C. Receipts from State Government D. Receipts from Federal Government

1. Highway-user taxes 1. FHWA (from Item 1.D.5.)

2. State general funds 2. Other Federal apgencies:

3. Other State funds: a. Forest Service 182,553
a. State bond proceeds b. FEMA 0
b. Project Match ¢. HUD 0
¢. Motor Vehicle Registrations 0 d. Federal Transit Admin 0
d. Other (Specify) - MVSA Tax 2,170 e. U.S. Comps of Engineers 0
e. Other (Specify) 0 f. Other Federal 203,630
f. Total (a. through e.) 2,170 g. Total (a. through f.) 386,183

4, Total (1. +2.+3.D) 692,587 | 3. Total (1. +2.g)

(Carry forward to page 1)

ON NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(a)

A.l. Capital outlay:

a. Right-Of-Way Costs

OFF NATIONAL
HIGHWAY
SYSTEM
(b)

TOTAL

(c)

b. Engineering Costs

¢. Construction:

(1). New Facilities

OO

(2). Capacity Improvements

(3). System Preservation

(4). System Enhancement & Operation

(5). Total Construction (1) + (2) + (3) + (4)

o] Fam} Fean] e} o] fian]

d. Total Capital Outlay (Lines l.a. + 1.b. + 1.c.5)

Notes and Comments:

(Carry forward to page 1)
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